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than two draft versions will be required. 
 
Q5: What is the expectation for the detailed scoping process for the implementation plan?  
 
A5: Projects will be defined, estimated and calendared to align with District resources. Funding will be 
distributed across fiscal year periods. 
 
Q6: How is the project budget allocation determined? 
 
A6: Project budget allocation shall be discussed during the FMP process.  
 
Q7: Will the firms scoping the projects for the RFP be precluded from providing proposals for future 
projects?  
 
A7: The District is seeking legal counsel on this matter and will issue a response to this question as part 
of a future addendum. 
 
Q8: Can the District share a link to the draft format of the district wide Education Master Strategic Plan 
(EMSP)? What is the status of the districtwide EMSP? What level of detail will be provided? What date 
will it go to board? 
 
A8: The draft of the EMSP is not ready for distribution. The EMSP is currently under development and 
no details are available at this time. It is anticipated that the EMSP will be approved at the December 
2019 Board meeting. 
 
Q9: Can the District provide the composition of the committee? 
 
A9: The District cannot state exact names or positions, but the committee will consist of a cross-section 
of the District and College staff and faculty. 
 
Q10: Is the selection committee for this RFP going to be jointly responsible for proposal evaluation and 
interviews? Please clarify the criteria for evaluation. 
 
A10: The District is currently re-evaluating its selection criteria and approach. A detailed response to 
this question will be issued via a separate addendum. 
 
Q11: The District has previously conducted various studies such as the parking study, accessibility & 
sustainability, underground utilities and mapping, etc. Is it the intent of the District that the FMP will 
include updates to those documents? Are these documents to be treated as static or will they evolve 
and be incorporated into the FMP? 
 
A11: The reports are living documents and may evolve during the course of the FMP process, however 
the successful Firm is not expected to update these reports. The reports shall be used for reference 
purposes only in the development of the FMP.  
 
Q12: Is the firm doing the EMSP precluded from submitting a response to the FMP RFQ&P? 
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A12: No. 
 
Q13: What firm is developing the EMSP? 
 
A13: MIG, Inc. 
 
Q14: Does the District have a space inventory database? Has an assessment of physical condition been 
conducted? Are the spaces “fit for programming”? 
 
A14: Yes, as with all California Community Colleges, our space inventory database information is in 
FUSION and this District’s information is believed to be no less than 90-95% accurate. Additionally, two 
separate condition assessments have been performed. The first assessment conducted evaluated the 
buildings and their systems. The second assessment conducted was a mapping and condition 
assessment report on the utility infrastructure. The aforementioned documents will be available for 
reference throughout the development of the FMP. The EMSP is determining whether spaces are “fit 
for programming” and this effort will continue with the FMP. 
 
Q15: How detailed of a utility infrastructure analysis are you expecting for the FMP? If the District is 
putting a new building on top of existing infrastructure, would it be expected for the firm to provide a 
plan? Which firm provided the utility mapping report? 
 
A15: The District will require the analysis to understand the cost of the infrastructure renovation 
necessary for every proposed project. The FMP shall incorporate all project costs when developing the 
implementation plan, including the infrastructure costs. The mapping and condition assessment report 
prepared by McCarthy Building Companies on the utility infrastructure provides necessary information 
for this effort and will be made available for reference throughout the development of the FMP. 
 
Q16: Question 8 of Proposal Form C requires firms to submit one complete example of a similar FMP 
developed within the last 5 years. Do firms have to provide a hard copy? 
 
A16: No, an electronic copy or a link to an electronic copy is sufficient. 

 
 
 
 

 




